### SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

$\sim$ $^{\prime}$	$\alpha$		$\sim$	
CA	<b>V</b> H		( )	
$\mathcal{L}_{\mathcal{D}}$		1.7	~	٠.

4th	Dist	rict (	7986	$N_0$ .	4D0	8-3042	)
$\tau$ uı	Disu	100	casc	INO.	TUU	いこいいすん	_

MARIA CEVALLOS,

Petitioner,

V.

KERI ANN RIDEOUT and LINDA RIDEOUT,

Respondents.	
	,

#### PETITIONER'S JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF A DECISION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

> Seaman & Coven, P.A. 803 Lake Avenue Lake Worth, FL 33460 Tel: (561) 540-3636 Attorneys for Petitioner

# **

Statement of the Case and Facts
Summary of Argument4
ARGUMENT I5
Conflict with Hoffman v. Jones
ARGUMENT II7
Conflict with Chadbourne v. Van Dyke, Johnson v. Deep South Crane Rentals, Jefferies v. Amery Leasing, and Eppler v. Tarmac America
Conclusion
Certificate of Service
Certificate of Compliance

# **TABLE OF CITATIONS**

Chadbourne v. Van Dyke, 590 So.2d 1023 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1991)
Eppler v. Tarmac America, Inc., 752 So.2d 592, 593 (Fla. 2000)
Hoffman v. Jones, 280 So.2d 431 (Fla. 1973)
Jefferies v. Amery Leasing, 698 So.2d 368 (Fla. 5th DCA, 1997)
Johnson v. Deep South Crane Rentals, 643 So.2d 1113 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1994)
McNulty v. Cusack, 104 So.2d 785 (Fla. 2d DCA 1958)4, 5, 7, 8

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On January 27, 2005, Maria Cevallos, who was the Plaintiff in the trial court action, was involved in a car accident which caused her to suffer permanent injuries. Ms. Cevallos brought suit against Keri Rideout alleging that Ms. Rideout's negligence triggered the multi-vehicle collision in which Plaintiff was hurt. Rideout denied that she had been negligent and affirmatively averred that Cevallos was comparatively negligent.

The case proceeded to jury trial during which Plaintiff introduced evidence of Rideout's negligence. Rideout admitted that she failed to slow her vehicle as she approached and passed over a hill immediately before she crashed her vehicle into a line of stopped cars.<sup>1</sup> Rideout further admitted that she was on her way home from work at the time of the crash and had very little time in order to then make a scheduled doctor's appointment.

Cevallos testified that Rideout was using her cell telephone immediately before the crash. In addition the evidence showed that Rideout failed to slow her

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Florida Statute § 316.183(4)(c) requires a driver approaching the crest of a hill to slow her speed.

vehicle to any meaningful degree before slamming into the rear of a line of stopped cars.

As to the defense of comparative negligence, Rideout relied entirely on the fact that Cevallos had struck the rear of her SUV. Cevallos, however, testified that she struck the rear of Defendant's vehicle, only because the initial wreck caused by Rideout's negligence left her with no chance to avoid the collision.

It was undisputed that Plaintiff, Maria Cevallos, was driving at or below the speed limit of 45 miles per hour and was following Rideout's SUV at a safe distance of approximately four to five car lengths. Defendant did not contest the fact that Cevallos immediately applied her own brakes the moment she saw Rideout collide with the vehicle ahead of her.

At the conclusion of Plaintiff's case, Defendant moved for a directed verdict. Rideout's motion asked not only for the trial court to direct a verdict on the issue of Cevallos' alleged comparative negligence, but that the court rule, as a matter of law, that Plaintiff was also precluded from pursuing her claim against Defendant. Rideout argued that Cevallos was required to prove that she was entirely free of blame (i.e., free of any comparative negligence) in order for her to submit the factual question of Defendant's negligence to a jury.

Over Plaintiff's objection, the trial judge granted Defendant's motion, holding as a matter of law that Cevallos was negligent and, as such, her claim against Keri Rideout was barred. Plaintiff thereafter filed her notice of appeal to the Fourth District.

Appellant urged the District Court to reverse the trial court's order, arguing that even if the trial judge was correct in ruling that Plaintiff was negligent, such a finding would not prevent Cevallos from pursuing a claim because Rideout's negligence was a contributing cause of Plaintiff's damages. Appellant argued that because she had offered evidence of Rideout's own negligence, a factual issue was created which only a jury could resolve.

The District Court disagreed, holding that because Cevallos had struck the rear of Rideout's vehicle, unless Plaintiff could prove that she was entirely free of blame, the law required that she be presumed to have been "the sole proximate cause of the accident."

The Fourth District's opinion was filed on September 9, 2009, and is published at 18 So.3d 661 (Fla. 4th DCA, 2009). Appellant filed her motion for reconsideration, and for an en banc hearing which was denied by order of October 30, 2009. A timely motion asking the Supreme Court to invoke its discretionary

jurisdiction was filed on Monday, November 30, 2009.

Petitioner, Maria Cevallos, believes the holding of the Fourth District expressly and directly conflicts with decisions of other District Courts and prior rulings of the Florida Supreme Court. Cevallos has therefore filed her petition, asking this Supreme Court to accept jurisdiction to consider the merits of her argument, in order to correct the ruling of the lower court.

# SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT I

The decision of the Fourth District held that Plaintiff, Maria Cevallos, could not pursue a claim against Keri Rideout unless Cevallos could prove that she was free of any blame for the accident sued upon. Because the Florida Supreme Court, in *Hoffman v. Jones*, 280 So.2d 431 (Fla. 1973) replaced the doctrine of contributory negligence with the rule of comparative negligence, the District Court's opinion is in direct conflict with the holding of the Florida Supreme Court.

### II

The Fourth District held that the presumption first established in the case of *McNulty v. Cusack*, 104 So.2d 785 (Fla. 2d DCA 1958) deems the driver of a vehicle which rear ends another to have been the "*sole* proximate cause" of an

accident, unless the rear driver can prove that she was free of all blame.

Decisions of both the First and Fifth Districts, as well as a case out of the Florida Supreme Court, have held that the McNulty Presumption speaks only to the question of the rear driver's negligence and has no bearing on the issue of the leading driver's conduct. Because Florida adheres to the rule of comparative negligence, even where the rear-end driver fails to overcome the presumption of negligence, the presumption does not absolve the lead driver of liability where there is evidence showing that she shares a portion of the blame.

Therefore, the Fourth District's decision in this case directly and expressly conflicts with the cases of *Chadbourne v. Van Dyke*, 590 So.2d 1023 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1991), *Johnson v. Deep South Crane Rentals*, 643 So.2d 1113 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1994), *Jefferies v. Amery Leasing*, 698 So.2d 368 (Fla. 5th DCA, 1997), and *Eppler v. Tarmac America*, 752 So.2d 592, 594 (Fla. 2000).

# ARGUMENT I Conflict with Hoffman v. Jones

The District Court's opinion states that unless the driver of a vehicle which rear ends another can prove that she was entirely free of fault, as a matter of law, she is precluded from suing the lead driver. The holding therefore directly conflicts with the Supreme Court's decision in *Hoffman v. Jones*, 280 So.2d 431

(Fla. 1973) which established the doctrine of comparative negligence as the law of the state.

Despite the clear mandate of the *Hoffman* case, the Fourth District's decision in the case at bar reinstates the doctrine of contributory negligence to a sub-set of cases which arise out of rear-end automobile accidents. The decision therefore directly conflicts with the prior ruling of this Supreme Court.

Plaintiff, herein, brought her suit against Defendant, alleging that Rideout's negligence triggered a chain reaction collision in which Cevallos was injured. The District Court erroneously focused only on the conduct of Plaintiff, Ms. Cevallos, rather than the actions of both parties. Plaintiff attempted to argue that a jury should have been allowed to consider the question of Rideout's negligence, even if Cevallos was partially at fault. The District Court rejected this argument, holding that:

"The plaintiff argues that the rebuttable presumption of rear-driver negligence does not apply to bar a claim by a rear-driver plaintiff because a lead-driver defendant could be comparatively negligent. In other words, a lead-driver defendant cannot use the presumption as a "shield" to require a rear-driver plaintiff to "establish the absence of negligence on her own part to pursue" her claim. We disagree." Cevallos v. Rideout, supra, (bold lettering added).

By holding that Ms. Cevallos was required "to establish the absence of negligence on her own part" in order to pursue a claim for negligence against Rideout, the Fourth District ignored the tenets of Florida's comparative negligence doctrine. If left to stand, the opinion of the District Court will revive the law of contributory negligence which this Supreme Court rejected in 1973.

Accordingly, the Supreme Court should accept jurisdiction based upon the fact that the Fourth District's opinion ignores the dictates of the Florida Supreme Court and expressly and directly conflicts with the Supreme Court's earlier decision in *Hoffman v. Jones*, supra.

#### **ARGUMENT II**

Conflict with Chadbourne v. Van Dyke,
Johnson v. Deep South Crane Rentals,
Jefferies v. Amery Leasing, and
Eppler v. Tarmac America

The District Court's opinion not only violates the doctrine of comparative negligence, but conflicts with those cases which correctly applied the presumption of negligence first enunciated in the case of *McNulty v. Cusack*, 104 So.2d 785 (Fla. 2d DCA 1958).

Beginning with the case of *McNulty v. Cusack*, *id*, Florida courts have held that a presumption of negligence arises in the case of a rear-end collision wherein

the following driver is presumed to have been negligent, unless he can establish that, under the unique facts of the case, the presumption is misplaced.

The *McNulty* court reasoned that because the lead driver would, in most instances, be facing forward, she wouldn't see the other vehicle before the collision. Thus, to require the lead driver to prove what the rear-ending driver did to cause the collision would, in many instances, create an unfair and impossible burden.

To cure this difficulty, the court created a rebuttable presumption which required the driver of the following vehicle to show why he was not negligent, rather than forcing the lead driver to explain the Defendant's actions in order to establish a prima facie case.

This same reasoning does not apply, however, where the issue involves a claim of negligence against the leading driver. The lead driver needs no artificial presumption in order to effectively defend herself against a claim of negligence, since she, herself, would be in the best position to bring forth the proof required.

Thus, the Florida Supreme Court, in *Eppler v. Tarmac America*, 752 So.2d 592, 594 (Fla. 2000), specifically held that "the rebuttable presumption of negligence that attaches to the rear driver... bears only upon the causal negligence

of the rear driver."

In contravention to this ruling, the Fourth District, in the case at issue, nevertheless held that because Cevallos failed to overcome the presumption of negligence, she was deemed to be 100% responsible for the accident, and Rideout would be deemed free of any negligence, despite evidence to the contrary.

The Fourth District's decision expressly and directly conflicts with the First District's opinios in *Chadbourne v. Van Dyke*, 590 So.2d 1023 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1991, *and Johnson v. Deep South Crane Rental*, 643 So.2d 1113 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1994), the Fifth District case of *Jefferies v. Amery Leasing*, 698 So.2d 368 (Fla. 5th DCA, 1997), and the Supreme Court's ruling in *Eppler v. Tarmac America*, 752 So.2d 592, 594 (Fla. 2000):

"The presumption will entitle the Plaintiff, lead vehicle, to a directed verdict where the Defendant, following vehicle, is unable to provide a reasonable explanation for the collision. Thus the issue which the presumption bears is the causal negligence of the following vehicle. We cannot accept Chadbourne's apparent assertion that the trial court was legally bound to attribute 100% of the negligence to the driver of the rear vehicle," *Chadbourne*, supra at page 1024.

"Today, when a rear driver sues a lead driver for damages from a rear-end

collision, and the lead driver answers with an affirmative defense of comparative negligence, the rule will, at most, establish as a matter of law that the driver of the rear car is liable for some portion of the overall damages. There is no logic in blindly applying the rear-end collision rule to determine the rear driver automatically to be the sole source of negligence in all rear-end collisions. If it is sufficiently demonstrated that the lead driver was negligent as well, the jury should pass upon the question of shared liability and apportionment of damages," *Jefferies* supra at page 371.

Petitioner therefore requests the Florida Supreme Court to accept jurisdiction of this appeal, in order to resolve the conflict between the decision of the Fourth District in this case at hand, and the opinions of the First and Fifth District Courts of Appeal, and to set forth a correct statement of the law for the guidance of future litigants and the lower courts.

### **CONCLUSION**

The decision of the Fourth District conflicts with opinions issued by the Florida Supreme Court, the First District Court of Appeal and the Fifth District Court of Appeal. The Supreme Court should therefore accept jurisdiction pursuant to Rule 9.030(2)(vi), based on the direct conflict created by the opinion issued by

the Fourth District in this case.