In the Supreme Court of Florida

CASE NO.: SC09-2238

MARIA CEVALLOS,

Petitioner,

v.

KERI ANN RIDEOUT and LINDA RIDEOUT,

Respondents.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

RESPONDENTS' BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

Respectfully submitted,

KIRWAN & SPELLACY, P.A. 750 S.E. 3rd Avenue, Third Floor Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316 Telephone (954) 463-3008 Facsimile (954) 463-3010 -and-

RUSSO APPELLATE FIRM, P.A. 6101 Southwest 76th Street Miami, Florida 33143 Telephone (305) 666-4660 Facsimile (305) 666-4470

Counsel for Respondents

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

For purposes of assessing potential conflict jurisdiction, the only relevant facts are those appearing within the four corners of the decision." *Reaves v. State*, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). "Conflict between decisions must be express and direct, i.e., it must appear within the four corners of the majority decision. Neither a dissenting opinion nor the record itself can be used to establish jurisdiction." *Id*.

Despite this long-established law, the statement of facts in Petitioner's jurisdictional brief does not confine itself to the facts appearing in the Fourth District's decision. Instead, Petitioner recites three and a half pages of 'facts' with no record cites and no Appendix cites because the 'facts' are outside the subject decision. Petitioner's statement of the facts should accordingly be disregarded. Petitioner's statement of the Fourth District's legal conclusions is also inaccurate, as detailed in the Argument below, so the arguments presented for exercise of conflict jurisdiction are simply not based on the actual decision.

The facts that are actually pertinent to this Court's potential exercise of conflict jurisdiction are those set out in the Fourth District's decision itself. (The decision is attached as an Appendix hereto for ease of reference, and cited as A 1 - A 4). As recited in the decision, this case arose from a chain collision situation, i.e., a series of collisions in a lane of traffic caused by a stopped car ahead:

The accident occurred when a non-party attempted to avoid a disabled

vehicle on the downhill slope of an overpass. Two non-party vehicles were able to avoid colliding with the disabled vehicle and each other. The third vehicle driven by the defendant, the fourth vehicle driven by the plaintiff, and the fifth vehicle driven by another non-party, were not that lucky.

The defendant's vehicle struck the second vehicle, the plaintiff struck the defendant, and the fifth vehicle struck the plaintiff.

(Fourth District Decision, A 1). As addressed in the Argument below, the Fourth District's decision turns on these facts, and not on the extraneous commentary in Petitioner's jurisdictional brief.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

There is no basis for exercise of conflict jurisdiction in this case because the decision of the Fourth District does not conflict with any decisions of other district courts or of this Court. In fact, the Fourth District's decision is completely in line with the cases on the specific principle of law involved in this chain collision case, including this Court's controlling decision in *Clampitt v. D.J. Spencer Sales*, 786 So. 2d 570, 572-73 (Fla. 2001). Accordingly, Respondents respectfully submit that Petitioner's request for review should be denied.

ARGUMENT

As the Fourth District decision accurately discusses, 'chain collisions' have been specifically addressed in the Florida law as to the presumption created by rear-end collisions. The Fourth District first noted the general rules as to the presumption and the showings necessary to overcome the presumption:

"In Florida, there is a rebuttable presumption that the negligence of the rear driver in a rear-end collision was the *sole proximate cause* of the accident." *Dep't of High. Saf. & Motor Vehs. v. Saleme*, 963 So. 2d 969, 972 (Fla. 3d DCA 2007) (emphasis added). *See also Eppler v. Tarmac Am.*, Inc., 752 So. 2d 592, 594 (Fla. 2000) (discussing *Jefferies v. Amery Leasing, Inc.*, 698 So. 2d 368, 370-71 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997) and *Gulle v. Boggs*, 174 So. 2d 26 (Fla. 1965)). A rear-driver defendant can overcome the presumption by establishing that the lead-driver plaintiff stopped abruptly and arbitrarily. Once the rear-driver defendant overcomes the presumption, the burden of proof on the proximate cause of the collision reverts back to the plaintiff, who can no longer rely on the presumption to establish the sole proximate cause of the accident. *Id.* at 594-95.

Where the plaintiff is the rear driver, however, the rear-driver plaintiff, like the rear-driver defendant, must prove that the lead-driver stopped *abruptly and arbitrarily* to rebut the presumption that the plaintiff's own negligence was the *sole proximate cause* of the accident. Phrased another way, the evidence must establish that the rear-driver plaintiff cannot reasonably have been expected to anticipate the lead driver's sudden stop. *Pierce v. Progressive Am. Ins. Co.*, 582 So. 2d 712, 713-14 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991) (*en banc*). More importantly, a rear-driver plaintiff cannot rely on the mere fact that the lead-driver defendant "ran into a preceding vehicle" without "material evidence of negligence" on the part of the lead-driver defendant in stopping abruptly. *Id.* at 714-15.

(Fourth District Decision, A 2)(court's emphasis).

As discussed by the Fourth District, this Court's decision in *Clampitt v. D. J.*Spencer Sales, 786 So. 2d 570 (Fla. 2001), directly addressed the circumstances presented in chain collision cases - in which each driver is faced with the fact of a

car stopped ahead in a lane of traffic - a showing of which does *not*, as a matter of law, qualify as a showing of an 'abrupt and arbitrary' stop that will overcome the presumption that the rear driver's negligence was the sole proximate cause of his/her collision with the car ahead. The reason for this rule set out in the *Clampitt* decision - and followed by the Fourth District here - is that as a matter of public policy the law requires all drivers to "push ahead of themselves an imaginary clear stopping distance or assured stopping space or adequate zone within which the driven vehicle can come to a stop":

The distinction between a presumption of comparative negligence and a presumption of the sole cause of the accident is reasonably related to the purpose of the presumption. Not only does the "sole cause of the accident" presumption relieve the lead-driver plaintiff of the difficult task of adducing "proof of all four elements of negligence," it serves the additional public policy of ensuring that all drivers "push ahead of themselves an imaginary clear stopping distance or assured stopping space or adequate zone within which the driven vehicle can come to a stop." *Clampitt v. D.J. Spencer Sales*, 786 So. 2d 570, 573, 575 (Fla. 2001) (quoting *Jefferies*, 698 So. 2d at 370-71) and *Lynch v. Tennyson*, 443 So. 2d 1017, 1020-21 (Fla. 5th DCA 1983) (Cowart, J., dissenting)). It further avoids the burden of proof being shifted to the lead-driver defendant.

(Fourth District Decision, A 2-3).

The Fourth District further quoted the Court's explanation in *Clampitt* that: "[A]ccidents on the roadway ahead are a routine hazard faced by the driving public. Such accidents are encountered far too frequently and are to be reasonably expected. Each driver is charged under the law with remaining alert and following

the vehicle in front of him or her at a safe distance." (Fourth District Decision, A 3, *quoting Clampitt*, 786 So. 2d at 575).

In *Clampitt*, this Court expressly approved the decision in *Pierce v*. *Progressive American Insurance Co.*, 582 So. 2d 712 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991), which made it clear that the fact that a front vehicle driver may have been in a collision does not change the principle that *as a matter of law* each rear driver's negligence in a series of rear-end collisions, as occurred here, is deemed the sole proximate cause of that driver's rear-ending collision. As this Court summed up in *Clampitt*:

This is a classic "sudden stop" case. Clampitt's auto stopped abruptly on the highway as the result of a collision with Huguley's trailer, and Hetz's tractor-trailer rig was unable to stop in time. Unfortunately, accidents on the roadway ahead are a routine hazard faced by the driving public. Such accidents are encountered far too frequently and are to be reasonably expected. Each driver is charged under the law with remaining alert and following the vehicle in front of him or her at a safe distance. [fn omitted].

In effect the law requires all drivers to push ahead of themselves an imaginary clear stopping distance or assured stopping space or adequate zone within which the driven vehicle can come to a stop. Failure to maintain such a zone is normally the sole proximate cause of injuries and damages resulting from the collision of a vehicle with an object ahead. This is why when a vehicle collides with an object ahead of it, including the rear of a leading vehicle, there is a presumption of negligence on the part of the overtaking or following vehicle. Lynch v. Tennyson, 443 So. 2d 1017, 1020-21 (Fla. 5th DCA 1983) (Cowart, J., dissenting).

Each driver must be prepared to stop suddenly (particularly during school and business hours on a roadway that is bordered by multiple business and residential establishments and a school, as in the present case). It is logical to charge the rear driver with this responsibility because he or she is the person who is in control of the following distance.

786 So. 2d at 575-576.

The Fourth District decision explained that Plaintiff/Petitioner here, who showed only that she ran into the car ahead of her in a chain collision situation, had simply not met her burden of proving a sudden and *unexpected* stop, because, as the *Clampitt* Court said, "accidents on the road ahead are a routine hazard faced by the driving public ... to be reasonably expected." 786 So. 2d at 575. As to Plaintiff/Petitioner here, the Fourth District's decision notes: "The plaintiff failed to adduce evidence from which it could be reasonably inferred that the lead-driver defendant's sudden stop was one which could not reasonably be anticipated." (Fourth District Decision, A 3). The Fourth District thus concludes:

The plaintiff has the burden to prove duty, breach of the standard of care, proximate cause, and damages. In this case, the plaintiff simply could not rebut the presumption that her own negligence was the sole legal cause of the collision. Accordingly, the trial court correctly directed a verdict for the defendant.

(Fourth District Decision, A 3).

The Plaintiff/Petitioner's case fell squarely within the *Clampitt/Pierce* circumstances under which her negligence in rear-ending a vehicle stopped by an accident in the lane ahead of her is deemed the sole proximate cause of her rear-ending collision as a matter of law. The Fourth District's decision correctly

followed - and directly comports with - the governing law from this Court on the chain collision issue presented, and thus presents no basis for conflict review.

Petitioner's conflict arguments ignore the fact that the focus of this Court's Clampitt decision - and of the subject Fourth District's decision which applies Clampitt - is on each following driver's negligence in a chain collision situation being deemed the sole proximate cause of that driver's running into the vehicle ahead for the public policy reason that the following driver "is the person who is in control of the following distance." Clampitt, 786 So. 2d at 576. Disregarding the sole proximate cause lynchpin of the Clampitt rule as to chain collisions - which was exactly what the Fourth District articulated - Petitioner re-writes the Fourth District's holding, attempting to replace it with an entirely different and overbroad proposition:

The District Court's opinion states that unless the driver of a vehicle which rear ends another can prove she was entirely free of fault, as a matter of law, she is precluded from suing the lead driver.

(Petitioner's Brief on Jurisdiction, p 5). No cite is provided by Petitioner, because the Fourth District's decision makes no such holding. Petitioner's first conflict argument - asserting conflict with *Hoffman v. Jones*, 280 So. 2d 431(Fla. 1972) - is based on Petitioner's self-created 'holding' and thus no conflict is shown.

Nor is there any conflict with *Hoffman v. Jones*, which generally adopted for Florida the doctrine of comparative negligence to replace the older contributory

negligence bar. That general doctrine, however, has nothing to do with the specific public policy driven *Clampitt* rule as to *sole proximate causation* in chain collision cases, which is the rule that was followed by the Fourth District here.

Petitioner's second conflict argument claims conflict with *Eppler v. Tarmac America, Inc.*, 752 So. 2d 592 (Fla. 2000); *Chadbourne v. Van Dyke*, 590 So. 2d 1023 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991); *Jefferies v. Amery Leasing, Inc.*, 698 So. 2d 368 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997); and *Johnson v. Deep South Crane Rentals*, 634 So. 2d 1113 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994). (Petitioner's Brief on Jurisdiction, p 9). No conflict exists with these cases either as they address different factual scenarios than the specific chain collision situation for which the *Clampitt* rule was created and which was appropriately applied by the Fourth District here.

This Court in *Clampitt* specifically distinguished *Eppler* because *Eppler* involved - *not* just the sudden stop in a chain collision situation that *Clampitt* said is to be anticipated by following drivers as to potential accidents ahead in their lanes of traffic - but rather a sudden and *arbitrary* stop:

The present case differs from *Eppler* wherein the forward driver allegedly made an abrupt and arbitrary stop in bumper-to-bumper accelerating traffic, i.e., a "gotcha" stop. Rather, this case is similar to *Pierce v. Progressive American Insurance Co.*, 582 So. 2d 712 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991), and other "sudden stop" cases wherein the forward driver merely stopped abruptly.

786 So. 2d at 574.

Chadbourne v. Van Dyke, 590 So. 2d 1023 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991) also did not involve the chain collision 'sudden stop' circumstances presented in *Clampitt* and this case so as to come within the *Clampitt* rule in which proximate causation is determined as a matter of law. Rather, *Chadbourne* involved a road roller going only 8-10 miles an hour on a highway with a speed limit of 55 m.p.h., which was then rear-ended by a driver traveling the roadway at normal speed.

Jefferies v. Amery Leasing, Inc., 6 So. 2d 368 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997), has a long discourse by the Fifth District - quoted in part in Petitioner's brief - on how the rear end negligence presumption should be applied vis á vis comparative negligence, which discourse turns out to be pure dicta because the case was decided based on the fact that there was no evidence in the record of negligence on the part of a lead driver that a rear driver sought to blame. Jefferies predates Clampitt and does not address facts like those presented in Clampitt and in the instant case. In Clampitt, this Court held that the issue of sole proximate causation is to be decided as a matter of law in cases, like the instant case, that present Clampitt or Pierce facts. Insofar as the dicta in Jefferies may suggest otherwise, Clampitt is clearly controlling. The Fourth District's decision here quite appropriately follows Clampitt.

Finally, *Johnson v. Deep South Crane Rentals*, 634 So. 2d 1113 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994), a 22-ton truck-mounted mobile crane pulled out onto a rural road traveling

20 miles per hour in a 45 miles per hour speed zone and was struck from the rear by a driver traveling 40 miles per hour. *Johnson* simply does not fall within the chain collision facts presented in *Clampitt*, *Pierce*, and the instant case.

A decision of a district court must "expressly and directly conflict ... with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the supreme court on the same question of law" in order to fall within the Court's conflict jurisdiction. Fla. Const., Art. V, § 3(b)(3); Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). No such conflict has been shown here, and thus no basis exists for exercise of conflict jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, Respondents respectfully submit that Petitioner's request for discretionary review should be denied.